
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Social Inclusion and Community Safety 
Policy and Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 21 March 2023 at 7.00 pm 
 

Main Hall (1st Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA 
 

Watch the meeting live: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Nikos Souslous (Chair) 
Councillor Omid Miri 
Councillor Trey Campbell-Simon 
Councillor Sally Taylor 
 

Councillor Andrew Dinsmore 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Governance and Scrutiny 
 Tel: 07776 672877 

E-mail: David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk  
Web: www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 

 
This meeting is open to the public and press. The building has disabled access. 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend but spaces are limited. If you would like 
to attend, please contact: David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

Date Issued: 13 March 2023 

https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham
mailto:David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees
mailto:David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Social Inclusion and Community Safety 
Policy and Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

21 March 2023 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  4 - 12 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as an accurate record 
and note any outstanding actions. 
 

 

4.   ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE LAW ENFORCEMENT 
TEAM  

13 - 33 

 This report provides an update on work of the Law Enforcement Team 
between January and February 2023. 
 
Appendix 3 includes information on a community engagement project 
undertaken by Neighbourly Lab. 

 



 

5.   POLICE INPUT BRIEFING DOCUMENT  34 - 39 

 This item provides a headline summary of the main issues impacting on 
policing within the borough, police performance against key crime types, 
and the impact some of the wider issues affecting policing in London 
may have over the next few months on communities and partnerships. 
 

 

6.   WORK PROGRAMME   

 To discuss items for inclusion in the work programme. 
 

 

7.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 To note the following dates of future meetings: 

 26 Jul 2023 

 22 Nov 2023 

 7 Feb 2024 

 24 Apr 2024 
 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Social Inclusion and 
Community Safety 

Policy and 
Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Wednesday 1 February 2023 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Nikos Souslous (Chair), Omid Miri, 
Trey Campbell-Simon, Sally Taylor and Andrew Dinsmore 
 
Other Councillors: Councillors Rebecca Harvey (Cabinet Member for Social 
Inclusion and Community Safety) and Councillor Rowan Ree (Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Reform) 
 
Officers: 
Mo Basith (Law Enforcement Manger) 
Kellie Gooch (Head of Finance, Environment) 
Matthew Hooper (Chief Neighbourhood Officer) 
Bram Kainth (Strategic Director of Environment) 
Craig Knight (Chief Superintendent, Metropolitan Police) 
Andre Mark (Head of Finance –Strategic Planning and Investment) 
Neil Thurlow (Assistant Director of Community Safety, Resilience and CCTV) 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Trey Campbell-Simon declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 4, Annual 
Performance Report for Law Enforcement Team as an employee of the Barons 
Court Project. 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

3. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 November 2023 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
 
Change of agenda order 
Members agreed a variation to the published order of business to take Agenda Item 
7, Medium Term Financial Strategy first. 
 
 

4. 2023 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 
Cabinet Member Overview 
 
Councillor Rowan Ree (Cabinet Member for Finance and Reform) introduced the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2023 (MTFS) presentation by thanking member 
colleagues for their collective input, and commended officers for all their hard work 
and commitment to preparing the council’s budget proposals. This was a remarkable 
piece of work as final figures from the Local Government Financial Settlement were 
released two days before the parliamentary Christmas recess. This was also the fifth 
consecutive year of having a single year financial settlement and many assumptions 
had informed the MTFS.  
 
This was a balanced budget, in response to the difficult financial future predicted by 
the Bank of England, a 10.5% inflationary rate, and interest rates of 3.5%, all of 
which were expected to have a significant impact on council finances. Despite this, 
high quality services had continued with free home care, free breakfasts for primary 
school children, maintaining weekly refuse collection and the introduction of Law 
Enforcement Team (LET). These were significant achievements and continued to be 
part of a package of proposals designed to protect frontline services for residents. 
Approximately £1 million in ring fenced funding had been provided as part of the 
council’s cost of living response to support residents.  
 
Head of Strategic Planning and Investment - Corporate Finance Overview 
 
Andre Mark provided a corporate overview of the 2023/24 MTFS strategic operating 
environment. The annual local government settlement had made it difficult to 
develop budget proposals, particularly given the demographic changes and an older 
population. Key principles underpinning the budget and shaping priorities against 
planned borrowing were explained. Demand led services such as school transport 
and social care had added further pressure and the strategy would protect frontline 
services and create resilience. H&F had one of the lowest council tax payments of 
£832 for a Band D property, meaning that a 1% rise for example, represented an 
increase of £8.30 per household. Savings of 2.9m had been proposed, and to place 
this in context, £40 million in efficiencies had been identified in the past of five years 
through better management of hospital discharges, and children’s services 
commissioning. A new waste management contract had been implemented, and in 
addition £1 million was to be invested in homelessness services.  
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

In terms of financial resilience, reserves were on par with the London average and in 
line with Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy recommendations. 
Earmarked reserves were ring fenced to protect business contingency planning and 
to fund a planned IT upgrade to ensure greater service resilience. Particular risk 
factors included demographic changes such as an aging population and the 
increased numbers of cases with complex needs. Additional pressures also included 
major regeneration projects such as the Civic Campus and free home care services, 
which could be impacted by the current financial climate.  
 
About 53% of households paid full council tax, with the remainder benefiting from the 
council’s generous council tax relief scheme. The local government financial 
settlement expected local authorities in England to increase council tax by 3%, and 
to levy 2% social care precept.  
 
Strategic Director of Environment – Department Overview 
 
Bram Kainth provided the committee with departmental highlights of the revenue 
budget for 2023/24 and described the range of services provided which included 5 
million waste and recycling collections, dealing with 12,000 noise nuisance 
complaints, the provision of libraries, parks and leisure services and keeping clean 
over 18k miles of streets. The department had also led the council’s response to 
address climate change by producing a net zero plan, independently commended as 
one of the best in London, by installing 2500 electric car charging points. Other key 
highlights included £4.7 million of investment in the LET to tackle gang crime and 
anti-social behaviour at no additional cost to residents with £2.2 million secured 
through developer contributions.  
 
As part of the council’s response to the cost-of-living crisis, £9 million in energy 
related grants had been paid, and £13 million in retail relief support. Improvements 
had also been made to the way in which residents access key council services. The 
department had received a significant commercial income of £12 million, for which a 
10% inflationary uplift for 2023/24 was planned for non-statutory fees and charges. 
The Good Parks for London 2021 guide recognised that the borough parks had 
significantly improved, moving from 27th place in the previous year to 5th place. 
Future strategic budget issues included the repair work to Hammersmith Bridge, 
which was awaiting confirmation of funding contributions from the Department of 
Transport and Transport for London and there were significant national inflationary 
pressures such as the cost of energy and current service contracts linked to the cost-
of-living crisis.  
 
Councillor Andrew Dinsmore sought a breakdown of the £4.7 million investment in 
the LET and the proportion that was allocated to the Gangs Violence Unit (GVU), 
and also the breakdown of expenditure for equipment, vehicles and uniforms. 
through developer contributions. Kellie Gooch explained that of the £4.7 million, £1 
million was for the GVU and assured the committee that a more detailed response 
could be provided as an action. Focusing on the LET salaries, Councillor Dinsmore 
asked why these were as high as police officer salaries. Neil Thurlow responded that 
the salary scale was commensurate with the role and job descriptions, and as 
approved by Human Resources. It was also explained that police on costs were 
higher. Councillor Nikos Souslous reminded colleagues that this was not dissimilar to 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

a point raised at the July 2022 meeting of the committee and a response to this had 
been recorded in the minutes.  
 
Councillor Dinsmore enquired about the proportion of the £4.7 million that was 
attributable to developer contributions and it was noted that this was £2.2 million. 
Enquiring about the impact of cancelled planning meetings, Councillor Dinsmore 
asked whether this would lead to decreased developer funding contributions. Bram 
Kainth explained that cancelled planning meetings were attributed to a decline in 
business which was not unusual at this time of year. Section 106 planning 
contributions that were currently being applied were historic and had accumulated 
during the previous five years.  
 
Referencing Councillor Dinsmore’s question about LET developer contributions of 
£2.2 million, Councillor Omid Miri sought clarification about whether this was funding 
that was anticipated or had already been secured. Bram Kainth explained that this 
was an annual cost and had already been secured for future provision. Contributions 
were negotiated as part of a continuous and on-going process and would depend on 
future funding agreements. Councillor Miri commented that a noted limitation of the 
LET was that the team could not be larger. He sought financial, strategic and 
operational perspectives from officers as to how this could be addressed. Kellie 
Gooch responded that it was not possible to increase the LET as the budget did not 
include an allowance for growth investment, although the council continually sought 
to improve contributions, applied in accordance with council priorities. From a 
strategic and operational perspective, Neil Thurlow explained that active resident 
engagement was strongly encouraged, and the work of the LET was widely 
promoted.  
 
Focusing on the wider community safety context, Councillor Ree commented that the 
administration had invested £5.4 million in comprehensive CCTV coverage, requiring 
£765k in annual support costs, in addition to regular borough wide LET patrols. A 
Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) lead officer post was funded by the 
Greater London Authority and was included in the base budget, permanently going 
forward as part of a four-year strategy. 
 
As chair of the Planning and Development Committee, Councillor Miri acknowledged 
that a decline in planning applications could lead to a downturn in developer 
contributions particularly given the cost-of-living crisis and asked what mitigation 
plans were in place to address this, particularly in the context of LET funding. Bram 
Kainth explained that the council was committed to supporting the LET service and if 
developer contributions declined, the department would identify alternative sources 
of funding to continue the service.  
 
ACTIONS 
1. For the Head of Finance (Environment) to provide details of the £3.7 million 

allocation to the LET and the breakdown of expenditure on service support costs 
such as equipment, uniforms and vehicles. 

 
RESOLVED 
That the proposals for the Medium Term Financial Strategy were noted. 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

5. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE LAW ENFORCEMENT TEAM  
 
Neil Thurlow presented the report which set out performance data for the Law 
Enforcement Team (LET). The report also included an update on actions arising 
from previous updates presented to the committee. 
 
Councillor Omid Miri welcomed the update and thanked officers for a response 
provided to his request about the number of female LET officers recruited, and that 
this had increased by 2. He also welcomed the ongoing commitment to recruit more 
women to the LET. Councillor Dinsmore also welcomed the progress to increase 
female representation within the LET and asked what measures were being 
implemented to support this. Mo Basith responded that there was engagement work 
undertaken within the H&F community, encouraging the interest of residents who are 
keen and interested in the work by highlighting vacancies. There was significant 
value in recruiting officers with local knowledge and awareness.  
 
Councillor Miri sought further details about the frequency of priority patrols, the 
localities in which they were deployed and the eligibility criteria that determined 
whether a priority patrol was warranted. There was a concern that the frequency and 
intervention of patrols depended on officer availability. Mo Basith explained that the 
priority patrol list consisted of a list of 20 locations, identified out of approximately 
900-1000 roads in the borough, and which would increase by up to a maximum of 
about 25, when necessary. A daily report as to the locations on the list was provided 
at the start of the day shift, and the relevant ward officer paid particular attention to 
that area. Close working with council and police colleagues, and residents ensured 
that the priority list was well informed by reported intelligence on issues such as anti-
social behaviour, housing or environmental concerns. This was included as part of 
the handover to the night shift at 8pm. An area remained on the priority list until 
officers were satisfied that any problem was resolved. It was confirmed that officers 
would share the list with members, with the caveat that it was subject to change. 
 
The relevance and justification of implementing weapon sweeps was raised by 
Councillor Andrew Dinsmore, in relation to employment statistics set out at page 21 
of the agenda pack. 864 weapons were conducted, removing 10 weapons, indicating 
just over a 1% efficiency rate. He asked how this could be improved, although he 
recognised that the weapons removed represented one less life that could be lost. A 
second question sought clarification about for example, screwdrivers and how it was 
possible that these were classified as weapons and assumed that they would be 
used for any purpose other than domestic. Matthew Hooper responded that items 
included in the weapons list had been concealed, in places and locations where it 
was known that weapons were likely to be concealed. It was a reasonable 
assumption that they could be regarded as weapons due to the nature of the 
concealment. Referencing his answer to the same point raised at the July meeting, 
he acknowledged that the find rate was not huge, which was welcome, however, any 
number of weapons found meant that one less person would be at risk and that there 
was an exponentially lower risk of impact and cost to police and health services. 
Weapons sweeps were intelligence led and the LET officers continued to work with 
the police to find weapons.  
 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Councillor Trey Campbell-Simon referred to section 22 of the report and sought 
further information about the type of support being provided to the homeless 
community in the borough. He asked what had been done to reach out to rough 
sleepers and partners, and which organisations and services had been in contact 
with rough sleepers. Mo Basith explained that the LET worked very closely with 
organisations such as Thames Reach, an outreach team that routinely accompanied 
LET officers. Thames Reach staff often worked in isolation at night, and so the LET 
provided were an additional resource. A list of known areas where rough sleepers 
bedded down and intelligence about this was shared with LET officers. Officers 
would accompany outreach staff and assist by providing safeguarding support. 
Additional work was undertaken during severe weather, with an emergency protocol 
implemented ensuring that all known rough sleepers were found. To ensure that 
rough sleepers and the homeless were able to engage with services, the LET also 
co-ordinated with the council’s Rough Sleeper Co-ordinator (Housing Services, 
H&F). Daytime intelligence about any newly identified rough sleepers was 
channelled through the rough sleeper team and Street Link.  
 
Councillor Miri referenced Ashcroft Square, King Street an Shepherds Bush Green 
as examples of areas that had experienced anti-social behaviour and where a partial 
closure order had been implemented with some success. Councillor Miri indicated 
that he felt reassured that the LET continued to conduct patrols in the two areas and 
residents had responded positively. Councillor Miri explained that he had seen an 
email trail that indicated that officers were engaged and responsive to residents’ 
concerns about reported anti-social behaviour and unauthorised access to their 
buildings. However, the situation has not entirely been resolved in Ashcroft Square 
and Councillor Miri asked if this was attributable to the partial closure. Mo Basith 
acknowledged that there had been offences taking place but that he was not yet in a 
position to corroborate the assertions of residents, without reviewing the available 
data and information provided by residents. A multi-agency team meeting was 
planned to address issues such as access to the buildings in Ashcroft Square to 
deter unauthorised access, together with the installation of additional CCTV 
cameras. There had been significant and ongoing consultation and engagement with 
residents including priority patrols, which residents had welcomed.  
 
Councillor Miri asked a follow up question and using Ashcroft Square to illustrate his 
point, and asked that if the entry doors were in a state of disrepair, how would LET 
officers proactively engage with housing colleagues and how would a repair be 
facilitated with housing building repair services. Mo Basith responded that the LET 
would liaise with the community safety co-ordinator who would in turn, liaise with the 
different service areas. In addition, it was explained that walkabouts with the 
community safety co-ordinator allowed them to identify areas of concern that needed 
to be quickly and effectively addressed.  
 
Councillor Campbell-Simon referenced the first meeting of the committee in July 
2022 and discussions about how the LET engaged with underrepresented members 
of the community. He asked if there had been any further feedback to report. Mo 
Basith confirmed that a number of resident engagement events had been held with 
faith groups in addition to ward panel meetings. Neil Thurlow added that the LET are 
able to engage with the police, offering a point of contact for residents, and this 
would also allow them to gain a better understanding of work that the LET undertake. 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

He reported also that the council had worked with an organisation called Navy Lab in 
order to gain a better understanding of community connectors and engagement.  
 
ACTIONS 

1. For the LET Enforcement Manger to provide further business intelligence 
information and data about the LET outreach work with organisations such as 
Thames Reach to support rough sleepers in the borough and the number of 
rough sleepers. 

2. Members to provide details about which communities would benefit from greater 
engagement with the LET, and for this to be reported back by the LET 
Enforcement Manager as part of future area of scrutiny for the committee as to 
how the LET undertake community engagement.  

 
RESOLVED 
That the Annual Performance Report and LET update was noted. 
 
 

6. PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDERS  
 
Charis Champness provided a statutory overview of what Public Space Protection 
Orders (PSPOs) were and how they should focus on problem behaviours that must 
be evidenced as either persistent or detrimental to the community. There were four 
PSPOs in place across the borough and two PSPO consultations had recently taken 
place. The first concerned responsible dog ownership. The second concerned the 
use of bikes on the Thames towpath and had been extended following the concerns 
of residents that a restriction on the use of peddle bikes should not be included in the 
PSPO. 
 
A member of the public explained that her daughter used a bike that included a 
carriage for her children, which added significantly to the weight of her e-bike. She 
asked officers and committee members to consider carefully the implications of any 
restrictions on the towpath as the impact on e-bike users was not uniform and unfair. 
In this case, her daughter would be unable to navigate pavements and roads due to 
the weight and width of the bike carriage, which was significantly easier as an e-bike, 
and safety issues in navigating parked cars. 
 
Charis Champness explained that the purpose of the PSPO consultation was to 
ensure that all the views of residents were taken into account before any agreement 
on the parameters of the PSPO were reached. The results and analysis of the 
consultation would inform the PSPO. In addition, an Equalities Impact Assessment 
would also be undertaken to understand the impact of a potential PSPO on different 
user groups, particularly those with protected characteristics. If introducing the PSPO 
will create a negative impact, for example, increased car usage, this would be taken 
into consideration. Residents will be informed of the consultation outcomes and 
Charis Champness agreed to email the member of the public once the outcome of 
the consultation was known which would be widely communicated by the council to 
residents using a range of mediums including a resident newsletter. Neil Thurlow 
welcomed feedback from the member of the public about cyclists riding on 
pavements along Fulham Palace Road and also on the Peabody Estate. It was 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

explained that the aim of the PSPO was to address anti-social behaviour so 
parameters of any restrictions would be appropriately considered.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the report detailing an update on Public Space Protection Orders consultation 
activities was noted. 
 
 

7. HARMLESS HEXAGONS  
 
Chief Superintendent Craig Knight of the Metropolitan Police gave a presentation on 
the use of geospatial mapping to target violent crime reduction in the borough. 
 
Councillor Omid Miri asked if the Shepherds Bush Green Public Space Protection 
Order (PSPO) had been effective and when it was set to expire. Chief 
Superintendent Knight said the PSPO was time limited, lasting 6 months and could 
be extended for a further 3 months. He said it had been effective, with crime and 
anti-social behaviour reducing. It had given the police additional powers, though if 
crime had reduced in that period, it would be hard to justify extending the order. 
 
Councillor Miri asked if the hexagon activity zones were time limited and if they came 
with any additional police powers. Chief Superintendent Knight said the hexagon 
process looked at where the crime rate was highest across the three boroughs and 
was reviewed fortnightly. There were no additional powers, but the approach meant 
targeting of resources. 
 
Councillor Miri asked if knife threats at and around Hammersmith station had led to a 
larger TfL police presence. Chief Superintendent Knight said knife related crime in 
the borough had reduced and the Met had been working closely with the British 
Transport Police (BTP) to improve safety at tube stations. He added that he was 
keen to work with any team that acted to reduce crime. High uniform visibility was an 
effective deterrent so alignment between the Met, BTP, and LET teams was critical. 
 
Councillor Andrew Dinsmore said it would be useful if the police could provide 
additional LET training to target the key issues that the team faced. Chief 
Superintendent Knight said he was happy to offer advice and training to support the 
LET. Neil Thurlow added that the LET team had worked with the Met on carrying out 
weapons sweeps safely, improving radio training, violence against women and girls, 
modern slavery, ASBO powers, and problem solving. 
 
Following a comment about the hexagon approach diverting resources away from 
other areas, Chief Superintendent Knight clarified that the hexagon process was a 
response to Home Office funding put in place to address consistently higher rates of 
crime in specific areas. It helped the police prioritise limited assets. Assets were 
applied based on the seriousness of the crime. The Mayor of London and 
Commissioner were looking to identify priorities over the next two to three years.  
 
RESOLVED 
The Committee noted the report and presentation. 
 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

8. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The work programme was noted. 
 
 

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The date of the next meeting, 21 March 2023, was noted. 
 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.00 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
Contact officer: Bathsheba Mall 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 E-mail: Bathsheba.Mall@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 12

mailto:Bathsheba.Mall@lbhf.gov.uk


LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 

Report to: Social Inclusion and Community Safety Policy and Accountability 
Committee  

 

Date:  21/03/2023 
 

Subject: Annual Performance Report for the Law Enforcement Team 
 

Report authors: Neil Thurlow, Assistant Director of Community Safety and 
Mohammed Basith, Law Enforcement Manager 

 

Responsible Director: Matthew Hooper, Chief Officer - Safer Neighbourhoods & 
Regulatory Services 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report provides the Committee with an update following the previous meeting 
focusing on work of the Law Enforcement Team between January and February 
2023. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. For the group to note and comment on the report 
 

Wards Affected: All 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Values 

Building shared prosperity A cleaner, greener, safer borough 
increases opportunities for all 

Creating a compassionate council 
 

Working with our communities the LET 
is the front face of the council for many 
and the service offers help, support and 
advice for all ensuring that everyone’s 
problems are addressed 

Doing things with residents, not to them 
 

Residents are concerned around 
environmental crime, ASB and this 
affects how they feel and perceive the 
boroughs  safety.  
Residents safety and perceptions of 
safety are key attributes that the LET 
work towards addressing 

Being ruthlessly financially efficient 
 

We have brought together several 
services to create on larger singular 
service with a  wider parameter of 
powers 

Taking pride in H&F 
 

The LET works to improve the 
environment of the borough creating a 
cleaner, greener borough 

Rising to the challenge of the climate 
and ecological emergency 

The service uses only electric vehicles 
and the default for staff is to walk with 
vehicles being used for specific matters 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



only 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
  
None. 
 

 
Background 
  
1. In January 2023, the Law Enforcement Team (LET) presented performance data 

and achievements since the formation of the service in April 2021. 
 

2. This report covers the period January 2023 to 22 February 2023.  
 
3. For the period of this report the LET team have received 568 service requests 

from residents and businesses, which have been investigated and resolved. Each 
request is acknowledged and tasked within hours of  it being received, as the 
LET inbox is monitored 24/7.  

 
4. During this period LET officers resolved most of the service requests without the 

need for enforcement however there are a number of  more complex cases which 
require constant investigation, monitoring and enforcement activity which can 
take upwards of  21 to 28 days where legal processes are followed.  

 
5. For the period of this report the LET officers issued a total of 178 fixed penalty 

notices for issues such as fly-tipping, littering and highway obstruction.  
 

6. The service has also undertaken some 14,587 patrols averaging 275 per day as 
officers worked to resolve and enforce such matters as those listed above. 

 
7. The LET team continues to show a high visibility presence in all parts of the 

borough with 2,427 hours spent patrolling our town centres, 1,342 hours 
patrolling on housing land and 730 hrs in our parks and greenspaces 

 
8. Following the previous PAC meeting and discussion on weapon sweeps and ASB 

patrols in this period the LET has undertaken an additional 722 weapon sweeps 
and addressed 162 ASB service requests with the service  paying particular 
attention to areas such as  Ashcroft Square, Westville Road and Askew Road.  

 
9. Service Updates 

 
10. LET Team continue to support external partners and council services. Some of 

the highlights from the past month include: 
 

11. Working with the police during the 24-hour operation in Hammersmith Broadway 
Ward. 

 
12. LET featured in My London highlighting the LETs work in the Shepherds Bush 

Green area. 
 

13. Working with the CCTV team to capture a large-scale graffiti incident on Kings 
Street which led to the arrest of two perpetrators. 

Page 14



 
14. Finding and removing drugs from a Sharnbrook House and handing them to the 

police for disposal.  
 

15. Assisting a male who was found lying on the footway on King Street at 23:00.  
 

16. Good partnership working between the local Police and LET to monitor and 
marshal a large congregation of approximately 1400 mourners at a funeral.   

 
17. The LET team continue to receive good feedback over the past two months 

including several compliments for our work.   
 

18. Updates on actions assigned in the January PAC:  
 

19. In the recent Social Inclusion and Community Safety PAC, the LET received a  
request to supply priority patrol sites which had been removed from the list. The 
list below shows the sites which have been removed since December 2021. 

 

Location Info Issue 

Effie Place Builders / Excavation Highways 

Dewhurst Road 
 

Idling Vehicle 

Lillie Road   Burglary 

Mirabel Road   Burglary 

Bishops Road   Burglary 

Fulham Palace Road   Burglary 

Allestree Road   Burglary 

Brookville Road   Burglary 

Mendora Road   Burglary 

Orbain Road   Burglary 

Seagrave Road 
 

Drugs 

North End Road Burne Jones House  Burglary 

Hurlingham Park Staffie Cross  Dog 

Askew Road  Kelmscott Gardens  Rough Sleeper  

Fairburn House West Kensington Estate Drugs  

Churchward House West Kensington Estate Drugs  

Desborough House West Kensington Estate Drugs  

Lickey House  West Kensington Estate Drugs  

Fulham Road, SW10 
 

VAWG 

Henchman Street Whole Road ASB/groups 

Hammersmith Grove  Tipsy Toad Drugs  

Haldane Road  McDonalds end, near North End Road ASB/groups 

Walham Green Court 
 

Drugs 

Carthew Road Outside School Drugs 

Talgarth Road   Waste 

Benbow Road Benbow Court  Drugs 

Page 15



Shepherds Bush Green   Drinking / Drugs 

Braybrook Street Whole Road Drugs 

Wood Lane Estate  Exhibition close, White City Close, Wood Lane Drugs  

Uxbridge Road  Whole Road  VAWG / begging  

Great Church Lane  Linacre Court RS/ youth loitering  

Rockerly Road  Whole Road  Fly tipping  

Redback pub/Barclay Close On Wednesday nights ASB 

Planetree Court, Brook Green Group congregating o/s the block ASB/groups 

Sycamore Gardens  Whole Area  Drug Dealing  

Goldwawk Road  Whole Road   Fly tipping  

Peabody Estate  The Square and Bath houses Drug dealing  

Wormwood Scrubs/WCE W12 area Rape issues 

Robert Owen House   Drugs  

Normand Park Loud Music/ asb and Congregations Noise Nuisance  

Stebbing House Queensdale Crescent Drugs  

The Grange Lytton Estate ASB/groups 

Loftus Road   ASB/groups 

Black's Road   Car break-ins 

Telephone Place Lillie Road ASB/groups 

Fulham Broadway McGettigan's/ Broadway Bar and Grill ASB/groups 

Broomhouse Lane Thames Path Drugs  

Hammersmith Broadway Bellushis and Be at One ASB/groups 

Communal area (Open space) Wandsworth Bridge Rd  Noise Nuisance  

White City Estate 
Grey House/Canning House/Ellenborough 
House 

ASB/groups 

Sterne Street Drug Dealing/ Drug use and ASB  Drug dealing/ misuse 

Wormwood Scrubs Linford Christie - Outdoor Gym area ASB/groups 

King Street  Night Time Economy/ begging  ASB 

Beatrice House Queen Caroline Estate ASB 

Benbow Road Whole Road Drugs 

 
20. The locations above were brought to our attention by residents, as well as 

internal and external colleagues who requested additional patrols to tackle 
specific issues.  
 

21. Following a sustained period of patrols and monitoring, the LET officers 
addressed the issue. Some of the inspections resulted in the problem being 
completely resolved or the collation of evidence, which was then sent to colleges 
in the ASB team for action.  

 
22. One such issue was at Ashcroft Square, which resulted in relocating a resident 

found to be permitting access to non-residents into the block. Other problems, 
such as waste presentation on Talgarth Road, were resolved by working with the 
waste team to conduct a sustained period of engagement and education, 

Page 16



followed by enforcement which resulted in numerous FPNs to residents who were 
not abiding by the collection schedule for waste disposal.  

 
23. We also receive Police data which we add as and when requested. These sites 

are predominantly burglary hot spots which the police have asked us to monitor 
for them. LET compliment the polices patrols and monitoring over a two or three-
month period. Once complete, we share our patrol data with them and compare 
them to new Crime stats, which have so far shown that the joint work has 
reduced burglaries in the area. We remove these sites from the list and move on 
to other newer areas they want us to concentrate on. 

 

24. A request was made for the current locations on the priority patrols list. At this 
time, due to the high levels of demand on the service, we have 24 as opposed 
our standard 20 sites although three separate taskings cover the Clem Atlee 
estate.  

 
 

Location Info Issue 

Shephers Bush Green 
CLOSURE ORDER- ALL ASB TO BE 
INSPECTED 

Beggar 

Uxbridge Road  Whole Road   

Kings Street Whole Road Drugs  

Benbow Road Surrounding Road Drugs 

Hammersmith Broadway Night-time economy Violence hotspots 

Thames Path Escooter and Bikes on Thames Path EScooters & Bikes 

Ashcroft Square ALL SERVICE- Street Sleepers and ASB ASB/groups 

Fulham Road 
Please disperse any one between 10 PM - 3 
AM 

ASB/groups 

Rosewood Square   ASB/ Drug 

Clem Atlee Estate Recycling bin near Herbert Morrison House,  Fly tipping issues 

Clem Atlee Estate Football Pitch ASB/G/Drugs 

Lilac Road Increase in ASB + vehicle break-in's ASB/groups 

Clem Atlee Estate Community Hall Littering issues 

Wandsworth Bridge Road  Entire Road  
youth Violence/ 
ASB 

Oakbury Road Entire Road  
youth Violence/ 
ASB 

Townmead Road 
ASH HOUSE, HAWTHORN HOUSE & 
SEQUOIA HOUSE 

youth Violence/ 
ASB 

Woodger Road  Sports Cafe  Gatherings  

Mortimer Hse (North)   Gatherings  

Fulham Road  Barclay House Gatherings  

Lillie Road  Prince PH (Thurs, Fri and Sat nights) ASB/groups 

Askew Road  Becklow Gardens  Drugs  

Bishops Park/Putney Bridge Bishops Ave  ASB - Robberies  

Askew Road  Outside NISA Store VAWG  

Westville Road junction with Batson Street ASB/groups 

 

Page 17



25.  A request was made to share data on the LETs work regarding the borough 
street population. The table below shows the total patrols conducted by LET 
officers to engage with or find a street sleeper in the borough  
 

 
 
26. A request was made to supply the number of referrals the LET officers had made 

once these individuals were identified. The table below shows this by month. 
 

 
 

 
27. Cllr Campbell-Simon wanted to know more about what we did for day provisions 

and what other steps are being taken to engage with other service that work with 
homeless people.  

 
28. All LET officers carry the document shown in Appendix 2 . Details of services 

available such as the Barons Court Project, the Upper Room and Glass Door 
shared with individuals we identify. We also have direct contact with the Street 
Sleepers team, who are on hand to provide guidance and advice to the LET 
officers and any individuals we identify/find. By working with the Street Sleepers 
team, the LET has linked some individuals with complex support needs back into 
their support network, which has led to decreased street activity. In addition, by 

68 

93 

123 

109 
118 

112 

129 128 

87 

113 

47 

1 

5 

2 

6 

10 

9 

6 

3 

0 

6 

2 

Page 18



working with the Street Sleepers team, we can identify those housed within the 
borough and involved in street-based activities. If individuals with support needs 
are identified, the street Sleeper team refer them to other local services such as 
the Rough Sleeping and Mental Health Programme and Turning Point. 

 
29. LET officers are now better at ascertaining who is homeless rather than just 

begging. By conducting as many patrols as we do, most ward LET officers are 
aware of those present in their ward. We also continually engage which helps us 
to determine someone's housing situation without making any assumptions. The 
LET has also investigated those with no housing options within H&F and advised 
them appropriately, the most recent case being the individual who was staying in 
Normand Park. Our ongoing work and the team's engagement with H&F’s Street 
sleepers have yielded positive results, and I am informed that H&F remains one 
of the lowest boroughs in London of verified rough sleepers. 

 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – LET Performance Data 

Appendix 2 – List of LET achievements and other taskings 

Appendix 3 – LET Community Engagement Project 

 

Page 19



Appendix 1 LET Performance Data 

 

2022/2023 Q1, Q2 & Q3 Q4 (to 22 Feb 2023) 

Total Investigations 4712 568 

Total FPNs issued 1302 178 

Patrols in HRA estates and/or blocks 20456 4815 

Patrol hours in parks 4397 730 

Patrol hours in estates and/or blocks 5886 1342 

Patrol hours in public realm 12238 2427 

Weapon sweeps 3072 722 

 
1.1 All LET Patrols 

 
 

1.2 Park Patrols 

 
 
1.3 Housing Patrols 

 

5709 

3832 

January February

1416 

997 

January February

2913 

1902 

January February

Page 20



 
 
 
 
1.4 Highway and District Centre Patrols 

 
 

 
1.5 Service Requests 

 
 
 
1.6 ASB Service Requests 

 

5244 

3843 

January February

457 441 

648 

504 490 
439 

470 
423 

189 

342 

228 

3 

19 

26 

59 

12 

25 

5 
8 

5 

ASB Begging ASB Drugs parks
open spaces

ASB General ASB Housing Land ASB in Park ASB Streets ASB Rough
Sleepers in Parks

ASB Rough
Sleepers in

Housing Land

ASB Rough
Sleepers in

Highways and
District Centres

Page 21



1.6 ASB Service Request by Location 

 
 
1.7 ASB Targeted Patrols 

 
 
 
1.8 ASB Patrol Outcomes 

 
 
 

1 
2 

0 

11 

8 

0 

12 

7 7 

25 

21 

13 

5 

3 
4 

20 

4 

1 
0 

3 
2 

3 

5 

0 0 

4 

1 

North Central South

ASB Begging

ASB Drugs parks open spaces

ASB General

ASB Housing Land

ASB in Park

ASB Streets

ASB Rough Sleepers in Parks

ASB Rough Sleepers in Housing
Land

ASB Rough Sleepers in Highways
and District Centres

1762 

1504 

January February

1762 
1504 

1223 

945 

539 559 

January February

ASB Patrols No Further Action In Progress

Page 22



 
 
 
2.0 ASB Patrols Highways and District Centres 

 
 
 
2.1 ASB Patrols Housing  

 
 
2.2 ASB Patrols Parks 

 
 
 
 

558 

624 

January February

1029 

686 

January February

134 

154 

January February

Page 23



2.3 ASB Drink / Alcohol Monitoring & Interventions 

 
 
2.4 ASB Drugs Monitoring & Interventions 

 
 
2.5 Weapons Sweeps 

 
 

81 

80 

January February

390 

380 

January February

403 

319 

January February

Page 24



 
2.6 FPN by Month 

 
 
2.7 Street Population (Engagement/Referral) 

 
 
 

64 

83 

133 

159 160 

186 
201 

186 

130 

98 

70 

April May June July August September October November December January February

113 

83 

January February

Page 25



Street Sleepers

P
age 26



LET and Police 

Collaboration

P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



More confident staff, more engaged residents: 
A summary report on LBHF LET Engagement Project for PAC 21.03.21

Who we are and what we do
Neighbourly Lab is a non-profit research and evidence organisation focused on promoting 
social connection. Our project ‘The Essential Mix’, kindly funded by the National Lottery 
Bringing People Together Fund, seeks to promote more frequent and more positive 
interactions between essential workers and the residents they serve, by running trials to 
identify what actually works to promote greater engagement.

As part of this project, we partnered with the LBHF Law Enforcement Team to understand and 
optimise their interaction with residents. From speaking with and shadowing the officers, we 
understood the delicate balance of managing the enforcement side of their role with wanting 
to support all members of the community and be seen as a sign of support in the community. 
Our trial sought to help them to have more informal, yet meaningful engagement with 
residents to promote greater relationships and trust amongst residents. 

Community Engagement Training that 
built skills, challenged perceptions and 
encouraged more informal engagement

To help officers to feel confident 
and empowered to engage more 
informally with residents to build 
trust

Create opportunities for LET to 
engage with residents in ways that 
are informal, positive and wide 
reaching

To encourage 
more positive 

and more 
frequent 

interactions 
between LET 
and residents

Our overall 
objective:

What we wanted to achieve and what we trialled: 

Community Engagement Events in Parks 
and Faith Spaces across the borough 

throughout the summer

Executive Summary
● Over an 8 month period we worked with LBHF Law Enforcement Team to trial different 

approaches to more impactful community engagement
● We shadowed the team to learn about their role and co-designed initiatives with them. 

Two key initiatives were trialled during this period - bespoke community engagement 
training and community engagement events

● Officers who participated in both parts of the training reported significantly better 
outcomes than those who did not - e.g. confidence engaging with public , sense of safety

● Residents who attended the events had more positive perceptions of the service and 
were more willing to engage with the officers in future

● These events facilitated in person reporting of issues and supported the upward trend of 
online reporting also

Page 30



Our work with the LET was made up of 4 key phases:

1
Understanding the Context:
● We spent weeks observing and chatting with the LET in their role/on the beat to 

better understand the ins, outs and challenges of their role, their current 
engagement with residents and where barriers to engagement exist

● We also conducted interviews with nearly 80 residents across the borough to 
understand current awareness, perceptions and engagement

2
Co-designing community engagement initiatives with the officers:
● We workshopped with officers to identify which ideas/interventions 

might be most valuable in engaging with the local community
● Worked with Snr LET team to develop training that aligned with team 

need
● Planned community events in partnership with Snr LET to easily 

engage with residents

3 Community Engagement Training
With each of the officer teams, we undertook 2 x ½ day training sessions. 
The programme that was tailored to the experiences and challenges of the 
everyday role for these officers.: 
● Unpacking biases and perceptions
● Skills development: active listening and open questioning
● Starting conversations effectively
● Sharing power with residents
● Peer to peer learning and role play

4
Community Engagement Events
● Providing opportunities for officers to practice this more informal 

engagement in the community. 
● The objective was to try and reach a wide variety of different residents, 

using two different engagement methods - one off engagement in 
parks (3 x different parks) and repeated engagement at a faith space (2 
x repeat visits to a mosque) to explore the difference in the 
engagement approaches

● The events involved the officers introducing the service, collecting 
intel, handing out free items - food, drink, stickers, badges - face 
painting, games for kids etc

Page 31



Our trial demonstrated the positive impact of effective engagement and argues the 
value of doing more to engage the community:

Comfort engaging with residents

Comfort sharing with colleagues 

Sense of safety in their role overall

Officers who completed both parts of the 
community engagement training 
reported significantly better outcomes 
than those who did not: 

Source: Post-trial survey, n=17 both trainings vs n=11 no/one training

Residents reported that based on their 
experience at the community events:

75% would be likely to chat with the LET 
on the street

77% would be likely to report an issue to 
the LET

74% would be likely to encourage their 
neighbour to contact the LET

Residents who attended the events felt more comfortable approaching the LET than 
residents who didn’t, and considered the service more valuable also. 

Training

Events

Source:Resident interviews at events (ss=77) + post-trial resident interviews (ss=53)

Officers completed over 66 feedback forms 
from residents at the events detailing 
issues in their local area

The Imam at the local mosque reported 
contacting the LET for support 3x between 
the two engagement events at the mosque. 
Building stronger ties with key members of 
the local Muslim community 

Page 32



And there was positive feedback from both officers and residents across the trial:

with thanks to partners:

Seeing this in the park makes you 
know someone is taking care

Resident

This is a great way for them to get to 
know the community. They should 
have been at more events this summer 
- the kids loved the dress up and all the 
stickers, face painting and all that

Resident

I think the biggest surprise for me 
was realising that I actually can talk 
to kids. This was never something I 
thought I’d be good at before but it 
was easy in the end

LET Officer

I was trying to do the ‘3 points of contact’ 
when we walked around the park. I won’t lie, 
it was strange at first but once you warm 
up to it, it’s good. People respond positively 
rather than being suspicious

LET Officer

I live on an estate down the road and 
they helped out with a guy who was 
sleeping in the stairs. Always drunk 
and scaring kids. I feel sorry for the 
man but he needed to move on and 
they came to help sort it out.

Resident

A couple of weeks ago I put this into practice 
and as result the Council received a very 
complimentary email from a resident and when 
I look back on it, I know this good practice I 
implemented was from the training with 
yourselves, so thank you. 

LET Officer

Page 33



Social Inclusion and Community Safety Policy and Accountability Committee 

Hammersmith & Fulham Council 

Police Input Briefing Document 

March 2023 

 

Introduction and Purpose: 

Dear colleagues and partners, this document seeks to provide you with a headline summary of the 

main issues impacting on policing within the borough at this time, police performance against key 

crime types and the impact some of the wider issues affecting policing in London may have over the 

next few months on communities and partnerships.  

The information and data provided is correct at time of writing and represents data to the end of 

January 2023 unless otherwise stated. Please note the context of any comparison with the previous 

12 months is set during COVID and the release of lockdown measures across the Country.  

 

Crime and ASB Performance: 

Total Notifiable Offences: 

In the 12 months to Feb 2023 TNO rose across the Borough by 2.2% (+451 offences) with an overall 

sanctioned detection rate of 6.8%. A total of 21,271 offences were reported. 

As comparison TNO across London rose by 7.6%, with a total sanctioned detection rate of 7.7%. 

Burglary: 

Residential burglary has fallen by 22.2% in comparison to the previous 12 months. This is a total of 

246 fewer homes burgled. The detection rate for dwelling Burglary in the Borough is 5.3% which is 

also better than the preceding 12 months. 

Commercial Burglary rose, with 88 more burglaries of business and community properties. The 

borough enjoys a good detection rate of 15.1% for these offences.  

Robbery: 

Robbery has increased across the Borough and represents the police’s main priority at this time. A 

rise of 23% has meant 101 more offences than the preceding 12 month period. The Borough detect 

8.4% of robbery offences currently.  

The Borough has very similar robbery rates and detections to the boroughs of Bromley, Merton and 

Kensington 

Sexual Offences: 

Reports of sexual offences have risen across the borough by 7.3% to a total of 602 across the 12 

month period to February 2023. The Borough has an overall detection rate of 8.6%. The force 

average across all 32 boroughs witnessed a rise of 3.2%. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 5



Some of this increase results from the re-opening of the night time economy and increased footfalls 

and social interaction across the Borough post COVID lockdown. 

Violence against the Person: 

This crime category includes a number of offences including homicide and any violence with or 

without physical injury being caused.  

These offences have increased by 1% to 5444 reported incidents. The increase equates to just under 

1 additional offence report per week across the borough in the last 12 months. The Borough 

detection rate sits just above the Force average detection rate for these offences at 8.5% 

NOTE: No Homicide offences have been recorded in the last 12 months within the Borough, with 1 

recorded offence in the preceding 12 months. The current Force detection rate for homicide is 

87.5% and no offence of homicide is ever closed and is subject to routine ongoing reviews and 

inspections. 

Theft of/from Motor Vehicle 

This includes vehicle interference, theft of and from a motor vehicle of any type.  

This crime category has risen in last 12 months by 18% to a total of 3072 offences. Of these, 70% are 

classified as theft from a vehicle. These offences are difficult to detect as property is often removed 

from unlocked vehicles or with limited CCTV or other useful investigative lines of inquiry. The 

detection rate for these offences is currently 1.2%. This detection rate is slightly above the national 

and London average for these offences, and has risen slightly from the previous 12 months.  

Police have been targeting hot spot areas in Hammersmith with increased patrols and stop and 

search powers are supporting the proactive reduction of offending in these areas. 

Stop & Search: 

Police Conducted 3963 stop and searches across the Borough in the last 12 months. The majority of 

these related to drugs offences. Almost 90% of all searches were on males and almost 85% were 

conducted on people over the age of 18.  

Police achieved a 30% positive outcome from these searches. Over 97% of all stop and search 

encounters are recorded on body worn video. Occasionally this is not possible for a number of 

reasons. 

Stop and Search remains a vital tool in preventing and detecting crime.  

ASB: 

There were 5338 reported ASB incidents in the last 12 months. This represents a decrease of 20% 

from previous year. The majority of reported cases refer to rowdy or nuisance behaviours by 

unknown groups or individuals and neighbours. 

Table 1: below shows these crime statistics in a table format for ease of use. 

 

 

 

Page 35



 

 

TNOs 

Page 36



 

 

Change over time Detection Rate 

 2.2% increase 6.8% 

Burglary 

Residential Commercial 

Change over 
time 

Detection Rate 
Change over 

time 
Detection Rate 

22.2% decrease 
(246 fewer) 

5.3% 
88 more 
reports 

15.10% 

Robbery 

Change over time Detection Rate 

23% increase 
(101 more) 

8.4% 

Sexual Offences 

Change over time Detection Rate 

7.3% increase (Total 602) 
Overall MPS rise of 3.2% 

8.60% 

Violence against the person 

Total Change Over Time Detection Rate 

5444 1% increase 8.5% 

Theft of/from Motor Vehicles 

Total Change Over Time Detection Rate 

3072 18% increase 1.2% 

Stop and Search 

Total Positive outcomes Demographics 

3963 30% 
90% on males  

85% on over 18s 

ASB 

Total Change over time  

5338 20% 

Page 37



Table 1: 12 month to Feb. 2023 crime/ASB data comparison against preceding 12 month period to 

Feb. 2022.  

Metropolitan Police Turnaround Plan 

The Commissioner, Sir Mark Rowley, has published the force response to the current significant 

challenges faced in policing and the reductions in trust and confidence in our service as a result of a 

minority of abhorrent acts by serving police officers over recent months. A short survey accompanies 

this plan, allowing anyone in London to have a say in what the future plan should include. 

This is available online here: 

https://www.met.police.uk/notices/met/the-turnaround-plan-more-trust-less-crime-and-high-

standards/ 

The plan includes 9 Turnaround Priorities which are set against three broad aims of MORE TRUST, 

LESS CRIME and HIGH STANDARDS. These medium and long term priorities are: 

1. Have the strongest ever neighbourhood policing in London 

2. Strengthen work in public protection and safeguarding 

3. Provide a compassionate and effective service to victims and members of the public 

4. Take a proactive approach to reducing crime 

5. Raise standards and show communities we care and respect them 

6. Set frontline policing up to succeed & build a strong foundation to stabilise and underpin our 

delivery 

7. Invest in our people by modernising our learning offer, including developing a strong cohort 

of leaders 

8. We will be relentlessly data driven and evidence-based in our delivery 

9. We will innovate how we work, make the most efficient use of resources and reinvest where 

it matters most 

Many of our strategic partners will be invited to one or more opportunities to discuss this plan with 

us separately. Everyone can provide their personal or business perspectives online at any time using 

the link above. 

This plan is a fantastic and unique opportunity to have a meaningful say in how London is policed 

and in setting the values, actions and directions of policing across the capital and of course, here in 

Hammersmith and Fulham. 

 

New Neighbourhood Policing Structures 

Within the turnaround plan outlined above is a commitment to have the strongest ever 

neighbourhood policing model in London. 

This is not simply about increases to ward teams across every ward in London, as this is not an 

evidence-based or pragmatic approach to police investment, community problem solving and crime 

reduction. The commissioner has increased the senior leadership structures for each borough with 

an identified superintendent (myself) as specific lead to Hammersmith & Fulham. My role will be to 

co-ordinate the strategic partnerships across the Borough using resources at my disposal in the most 

effective way possible. In addition work is underway to increase the numbers of PCSOs across 

London. These are likely to be allocated where demands are greatest across wards, to build trust and 

Page 38

https://www.met.police.uk/notices/met/the-turnaround-plan-more-trust-less-crime-and-high-standards/
https://www.met.police.uk/notices/met/the-turnaround-plan-more-trust-less-crime-and-high-standards/


provide that local reassurance to communities. Police are also building better internal structures so 

that every officer, regardless of specialism or role, plays an integral part in building community 

confidence and impacting on what matters most to people. The turnaround plan also provides 

communities and partners with an opportunity to have a direct say in how this structure might look 

and feel.  

As more details become available I will ensure partners are kept informed. 

  

Ward Panels and Priorities 

Table 2, (below) shows the current ward panel priorities and dates of next meetings where these 

are available.  

 

Please note that some wards have amalgamated ward panel meetings as a result of the boundary 

changes in 2022. Every ward is represented at a panel and ward priorities are actioned by the local 

neighbourhood teams responsible for those wards. The priorities are set by the panel with a 

standard priority across London to reduce violence for every officer regardless of role.  

 

Police Officer Numbers 

All three boroughs within the basic command unit are currently recruiting officers into 

neighbourhood policing. Hammersmith and Fulham currently has 9 police officer vacancies for the 

role of dedicated ward officer. Of note the political boundary changes created in May 2022 were not 

reflected in police officer increases as the overall geographic policing numbers are set according to 

policing demand, as well as ward and borough boundaries. 

    Submitted for information of the meeting 

       A/Supt Craig Knight 

Page 39


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Annual Performance Report for the Law Enforcement Team
	Appendix 1 - LET Performance Data
	Appendix 2 - LET Achievements
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4

	Appendix 3 - LET Community Engagement Project

	5 Police Input Briefing Document

